

Bylaws Exhibits

EXHIBIT "A"

Situated in Miami Township, Clermont County, Ohio and Lytle Military Suvey No. 3332 and being more particularly described as follws:

All of Lots 36 through 84 inclusive of Tanglewood Subdivision, Section IV, as recorded in Plat Book 3 , Page 189 , Clermont County, Ohio Records.

Prior Instrument Reference: Deed Book 290, Page 245, Clermont County, Ohio Records.

Situated in Miami Township, Clermont County, Ohio and in Lytle Military Survey No. 3332 and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the southwesterly corner of Lot No. 10½ of Miami Meadows Subdivision, Block A as recorded in Plat Book "K", Page 18 of the Clermont County, Ohio Plat Records and in the centerline of Branch Hill-Guinea Road; thence partially with the southerly line of said Lot No. 10½, North 50° 53' 28" East 946.49 feet; thence North 42° 01' 43" West 805.97 feet to a stone; thence North 47° 14' 51" East 1148.26 feet to a post; thence with lines of Paxton Woods Subdivision, South 43° 30' 00" East 70.61 feet and North 48° 00' 00" East 365.89 feet; thence South 39° 19' 57" East 915.45 feet to the northeasterly corner of Tanglewood Subdivision; thence with the northerly lines of said Tanglewood Subdivision, South 57° 34' 22" West 322.75 feet to an existing 3/4" pipe and South 51° 36' 55" West 2103.60 feet to a spike in the centerline of Branch Hill-Guinea Road; thence with the centerline of said Branch Hill-Guinea Road, North 43° 08' 32" West 25.43 feet to the place of beginning and containing 31.129 acres of land subject to legal highways and easements of record.

Parcel I:

Situated in Miami Township, Clermont County, Ohio, in Military Survey No. 3332 and being more particularly described as follows:

Lots numbered 86 through 107, inclusive, of Tanglewood, Section I, as the same appears on the recorded plat thereof in Plat Book U, Pages 46 and 47, in the office of the Recorder of Clermont County, Ohio, to which recorded plat reference is hereby had and made for a more particular description of the real estate hereby conveyed.

Parcel II:

Situated in Miami Township, Clermont County, Ohio, in Military Survey No. 3332 and being more particularly described as follows:

Lots numbered 29 through 35 inclusive, Lot No. 85, and Lots No. 108 through 127 inclusive, of Tanglewood, Section II, as the same appears on the recorded plat thereof in Plat Book W, Pages 48, 49 and 50, in the office of the Recorder of Clermont County, Ohio, to which recorded plat reference is hereby had and made for a more particular description of the real estate hereby conveyed.

Parcel III:

Situated in Miami Township, Clermont County, Ohio, in Military Survey No. 3332 and being more particularly described as follows:

Lots numbered 1 through 28 inclusive, and Lots No. 128 through 142 inclusive, of Tanglewood, Section III, as the same appears on the recorded plat thereof in Plat Cabinet 3, Pages 166, 167 and 168, in the office of the Recorder of Clermont County, Ohio, to which recorded plat reference is hereby had and made for a more particular description of the real estate hereby conveyed.

EXHIBIT "C"

BY-LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF

NOL 732 PAGE 810

TANGLEWOOD HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

Section 1.1. Name and Location. The name of the corporation is Tanglewood Homeowners' Association, hereinafter referred to as "Association". The principal office of the corporation shall be located at Suite 200, 7265 Kenwood Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45236, but meetings of members and trustees may be held at such places within Hamilton or Clermont Counties, State of Ohio, as may be designated by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

- Section 2.1. "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, Easements and Liens applicable to the Properties recorded in the office of the Clermont County Recorder, and appended to the Articles of Incorporation, as the same may be amended, from time to time.
- Section 2.2. As used in these Regulations, the terms "Association", "Owner", "Properties", "Lot", "Common Areas", "Recreational Facilities", "Member", and "Declarant" shall have the same meaning as each is defined to have in the Declaration.

ARTICLES III

MEETING OF MEMBERS

- Section 3.1. Annual Meeting. The first annual meeting of the members of shall be held on the second Tuesday of January, 1987, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the second Tuesday of January of each year thereafter, at the hour of 7:30 o'clock p.m.
- Section 3.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Trustees, or upon written request of the Members who are entitled to vote one-third (1/3) of all the votes of membership.
- Section 3.3. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing or delivering a copy of such notice, at least fifteen (15) days before such meeting, to each Member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.
- Section 3.4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of Members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, fifty percent (50%) of the votes of the

membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or these By-Laws and Regulations. If however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote thereat shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

- Section 3.5. Adjourned Meetings. If, at any regular or special meeting of the Members of the Association, there be less than a quorum present, a majority of those Members present and entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called, at which time the quorum requirement shall be one-third (1/3) of the votes of the membership of the Association, and any business which might lawfully have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- Section 3.6. Proxies. At all meetings of the Members, each Member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his Lot.
- Section 3.7. Voting. The vote of the majority of those present, either in person or by proxy, shall decide any questions brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which a different vote is required by provision of the laws of Ohio, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association or these By-Laws and Regulations.
- Section 3.8. Suspension of Voting Privileges. No member shall be eligible to vote or to be elected to the Board of Trustees who is shown on the books of the Association to be more than thirty (30) days delinquent in the payment of any assessment due the Association.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF TRUSTEES; SELECTION; TERM OF OFFICE

- Section 4.1. Number. The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board of Seven (7) Trustees, who need not be members of the Association.
- Section 4.2. Term of Office. At the first annual meeting the Declarant shall elect four (4) Trustees for a term of one year, and the members other than the Declarants shall elect three (3) Trustees for a term of one year, and at each annual meeting thereafter the Class A members shall elect three (3) Trustees and Class B members shall elect four (4) Trustees, for a term of one year, or until their successors are elected and qualified. At such time as Class B memberships terminate, as provided in the Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation, all Trustees shall be elected by the members for a term of one year, or until their successors are elected and qualified.
- Section 4.3. Removal. Any Trustee may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a Trustee, his successor shall be selected by the remaining Members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor. However, any Trustee elected by the Declarant may only be removed by the Declarant, and his successor may only be appointed by Declarant, to serve for the unexpired term.

- Section 4.4. Compensation. Members of the Board of Trustees shall serve without compensation. However, any Trustee may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.
- Section 4.5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The Trustees shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the Trustees. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Trustees.

ARTICLE V

NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

- Section 5.1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Trustees shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Trustees, and two or more members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees 60 days prior to each annual meeting of the members, to serve from the time of appointment until the close of the next annual meeting, and such appointment shall be announced at the next regular Board meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Trustees as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among members or non-members.
- Section 5.2. Election. Election to the Board of Trustees shall be by secret written ballot. At such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration and Section 3.7 of Article III of these By-Laws and Regulations. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS OF TRUSTEES

- Section 6.1. Regular Meetings. The Board of Trustees shall meet annually within 10 days after the annual meeting of members and, in addition to the annual meeting, shall meet at regular meetings established as to time and place by resolution of the Board. Should any regular meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.
- Section 6.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held when called by the President of the Association, or by any four (4) Trustees, after not less than three (3) days notice to each Trustee.
- Section 6.3. Quorum. A majority of the number of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Trustees present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

ARTICLE VII

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 7.1. Powers. The Board of Trustees shall have power to:

- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Areas and Recreational Facilities and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of the Recreational Facilities of a member during any period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws and Regulations, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration; and
- (d) declare the office of a member of the Board of Trustees to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Trustees.
- (e) employ such independent contractors, and other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.

Section 7.2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Trustees to:

- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the Members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-fifth (1/5) of each class of Members who are entitled to vote;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
- (c) as more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
 - (1) fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;
 - (2) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least fifteen (15) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
 - (3) foreclose the lien against any Lot for which assessments are not paid within sixty (60) days after due date or bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same, if the Board deems foreclosure or other action necessary.

- (d) issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge not to exceed fifteen dollars (\$15.00), may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association;
- (f) cause all officers having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as required by the Declaration; and
- (g) cause the Common Areas to be maintained.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

- Section 8.1. Enumeration of Officers. The officers of this Association shall be a President and Vice-President, who shall at all times be members of the Board of Trustees, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.
- $\underline{\text{Section 8.2.}}$ $\underline{\text{Election of Officers}}$. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Trustees following each annual meeting of the members.
- Section 8.3. Term. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year and until his successor is elected and qualified, unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed or other disqualified to serve.
- Section 8.4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.
- Section 8.5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- Section 8.6. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.
- Section 8.7. <u>Multiple Offices</u>. The office of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more the one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 8.4 of this Article.

Section 8.8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

- (a) President The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; and shall act as chief executive officer.
- (b) Vice-President The Vice-President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by him by the Board.
- (c) Secretary The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.
- (d) Treasurer The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank or savings and loan accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Trustees; keep proper books of accounts; cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a certified public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the members.

ARTICLE IX

COMMITTEES

The Board of Trustees shall appoint a Nominating Committee, as provided in these By-Laws and Regulations. In addition, the Board of Trustees shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. Books and Records. The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any member, and any holder, insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage on a Lot. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws and Regulations of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

Section 10.2. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year shall begin on the first day of January every year, except that the first fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the date of incorporation. The commencement date of the fiscal year herein established may be changed by the Board of Trustees should corporate practice subsequently dictate.

- Section 10.3. Execution of Association Documents. All notes, contracts, other documents, checks, and other drafts shall be executed on behalf of the Association by such officers, agents or other persons as are from time to time designated by the Board of Trustees.
- Section 10.4. Conflict. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws and Regulations, the Articles shall control; and in the case of conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws and Regulations, the Declaration shall control.
- Section 10.5. Amendments. These By-Laws and Regulations may be amended at a regular or special meeting of the members, by affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of votes held by each class of Members of the Association.

EXHIBIT "D"

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

VOL 732 PAGE 817

TANGLEWOOD HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

The undersigned, desiring to form a corporation not for profit, under the Ohio Non-Profit Corporation Law, Section 1702.01 to 1702.58, inclusive, of the Revised Code of Ohio, does hereby certify:

ARTICLE I

The name of the corporation shall be Tanglewood Homeowners' Association.

ARTICLE II

The place in the State of Ohio where the principal office of the corporation is to be located is in Sycamore Township, Hamilton County, Ohio.

ARTICLE III

The purpose for which said non-profit corporation is formed, and various other provision pertaining to this non-profit corporation and its powers are set forth in the following sections of these Articles. This non-profit corporation, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Association", does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit to the members thereof, and the specific purposes for which it is formed are to act as the Lot Owners' Association with regard to the tracts of real estate specifically described in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to said real estate, said Declaration being recorded or to be recorded in the property records of the county where the principal office of this corporation is located. In addition, the specific purposes for which this Association is formed are to provide for the maintenance, preservation and control of the aforesaid real estate and the buildings and improvements situated thereon under the terms of said Declaration, and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents and owners of the above described property and to act in the same manner with regard to any other property which may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of this Association as part of the same plan, and for these purposes:

- (a) to exercise all the power and privileges and to perform all of the duties and obligations of the Association as set forth in the aforesaid Declaration or as the same may be amended from time to time;
- (b) to fix, levy, collect and enforce payment by any lawful means of all charges or assessments pursuant to the terms of the Declaration; to pay all expenses in connection therewith and all office, administrative, and other expenses incident to the conduct of the business of the Association, including all license fees, taxes or governmental charges levied or imposed against the property of the Association;
- (c) to acquire (by gift, purchase or otherwise), own, hold, improve, build upon, operate, maintain, convey, sell, lease, transfer, dedicate for public use or otherwise dispose of real or personal property in connection with the affairs of the Association and subject to the terms of the Declaration;

- (d) to borrow money, and with the assent of a majority of the voting power of the Association, to mortgage, pledge, deed in trust, or hypothecate any or all of its real or personal property as security for money borrowed or debts incurred, but only to the extent permitted by the Declaration;
- (e) to dedicate, sell or transfer all or any part of the Common Areas to any public agency, authority or utility for such purpose and to the extent and in such manner as may be authorized in the Declaration;
- (f) to own, acquire, build, operate and maintain open spaces, private roadways, parking areas, driveways, utility lines, recreation areas, playgrounds, swimming pools, and any structures, fixtures and all personal property incidental thereto, in accordance with the Declaration;
- (g) to obtain, pay for and maintain insurance to the extent provided in the Declaration;
- (h) to do any other thing necessary, expedient, incidental, appropriate or convenient to the carrying out of the foregoing purposes or which will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the residents or owners of the Lots, insofar as not prohibited by law or the Declaration; and
- (i) to have and to exercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which a corporation organized under the Non-Profit Corporation Law of the State of Ohio by law may now or hereafter have or exercise, insofar as not prohibited by the Declaration.

ARTICLE IV

TRUSTEES

The affairs of this Association shall be managed by the Board of Trustees, sometimes referred to as Directors, who need not be members of the Association. The number of trustees may be designated as not less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) members by said Association. The names and addresses of the persons who are to act in the capacity of initial Trustees until the selection of their successors are:

Name	Term of Office	Address
Robert N. Sibcy	1 year	7265 Kenwood Road Suite 200 Cincinnati, Ohio 45236
William Borek	l year	7265 Kenwood Road Suite 200 Cincinnati, Ohio 45236
George M. Pritchard	l year	7265 Kenwood Road Suite 200 Cincinnati, Ohio 45236

ARTICLE V

MEMBERSHIP

Every Owner of a Lot as described in the Declaration and as created by that Declaration which is subject by covenants of record contained in the Declaration to assessment by the Association, including purchasers on land installment contract as such instruments are defined in Ohio Revised Code Chapter 5313, and including contract sellers on other forms of executory contracts for the sale of a Lot, but excluding those holding record title or a similar interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation, shall automatically on acquisition of such ownership interest in a Lot be a member of the Association. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot which is subject to assessment. Such membership shall terminate upon the sale or other disposition by such Lot Owner of his ownership interest, at which time the new Lot Owner shall automatically become a member of the Association.

ARTICLE VI

VOTING RIGHTS

The Association shall have two classes of voting membership:

 $\underline{\text{Class A}}$ - Class A members shall be all owners (with exception of the Declarant for as long as Class B membership exists), who shall be entitled to one vote for each lot owned. When more than one person holds an interest in any Lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such Lot shall be exercised as set forth in the Declaration and By-Laws.

Class B - Class B members shall be the Declarant (as defined in the Declaration), and such member shall be entitled to a such number of votes as will constitute seventy-five percent (75%) of the total voting power of the Association, as long as the Class B membership continues to exist. The Class B membership shall cease and be converted to Class A membership with one (1) vote for each Lot owned, on the happening of the following events, whichever occurs earlier:

- A. When all of the real property described in Exhibit "B" has been annexed to the Declaration by the Declarants and seventy-five percent (75%) of the Lots therein have been sold and conveyed to individual owners;
- B. When the period of time of five (5) years has expired from and after the date the Declaration is recorded.

Provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit the Class B member from converting all or part of its Class B membership to Class A membership with the results set forth above at any time earlier than the latter of the alternative events referred to above, by a written statement executed by the Declarant and delivered to the Association.

ARTICLE VII

DISSOLUTION

Upon dissolution of the corporation, any assets remaining after payment or adequate provision for payment of all debts and obligations of the corporation

EVOL 732 PAGE 820

shall be expended in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. If no successor in interest to the corporation is formed to administer the property of the corporation, its assets shall be distributed equally to its members according to a plan adopted and administered by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE VIII

DURATION

The corporation shall exist perpetually, unless dissolved earlier under the terms of these Articles.

ARTICLE IX

AMENDMENTS

Amendments of these Articles shall require the assent of members holding at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power of each class of the Association, except as may be provided to the contrary in the Declaration.

ARTICLE X

DEALING WITH CORPORATION

A director or officer of the corporation shall not be disqualified by his office from dealing or contracting with the corporation as a vendor, purchaser, employee, agent or otherwise; nor shall any transaction, contract or act of the corporation be void or voidable or in any way effected or invalidated by reason of the fact that any director or officer or any firm of which such director or officer is a member, or any corporation of which such director or officer is a shareholder, director or officer, is in any way interested in such transaction, contract or act; provided, however, that the fact that such director, officer, firm or corporation is so interested must be disclosed to or known by the Board of Trustees or such members thereof as shall be present at the meeting of said Board at which action is taken upon such matters. No director or officer shall be accountable or responsible to the corporation for or in respect to any such transaction, contract, or act or for any gains or profits realized by him or by any organization affiliated with him as a result of such transaction, contract Any such director or officer may be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting of the Board of Trustees of the corporation which shall authorize or take action in respect of any such contract, transaction or act, and may vote to authorize, ratify or approve any such contract, transaction or act, with like force and effect as if he or any firm of which he is a member or a corporation of which he is a shareholder, officer or director, were not interested in such transaction, contract or act.

ARTICLE XI

INDEMNIFICATION OF TRUSTEES, OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES

The corporation shall indemnify any and every trustee, officer or employee against expenses, judgments, decrees, fines, penalties or amounts paid in settlement in connection with the defense of any pending or threatened action, suit or proceeding, criminal or civil, to which such trustee, officer or

IVOL: 732 PAGE 821

employee is or may be made a party by reason of being or having been such trustee, officer or employee, provided a determination is made by the trustees in the manner set forth in Ohio Revised Code Section 1702.12(e) (1) to the effect (a) that such trustee, officer or employee was not, and has not been adjudicated to have been, negligent or guilty of misconduct in the performance of his duty to the corporation of which he is a trustee, officer or employee, (b) that he acted in good faith in what he reasonable believed to be the best interest of such corporation, and (c) that, in any matter the subject of a criminal action, suit or proceeding, he had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful. Such indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such trustee, officer or employee may be entitled under these Articles, the By-Laws of this corporation, any agreement or any insurance purchased by this corporation, or by vote of the members, or otherwise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, for the purpose of forming this corporation under the laws of the State of Ohio the undersigned Incorporator of this Association has executed these Articles of Incorporation on this day of December 1986.

George M. Pritchard, Incorporator

ORIGINAL APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

The undersigned, being the Incorporator of Tanglewood Homeowners' Association, hereby appoints George M. Pritchard a natural person resident in the State of Ohio, upon whom any process, notice or demand required or permitted by statute to be served upon the corporation may be served. His complete address is 7265 Kenwood Road, Suite 200, Cincinnati, Ohio 45236.

George M. Pritchar , Incorporator

Cincinnati, Ohio December 5 , 1986

TANGLEWOOD HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

Gentlemen:

I hereby accept appointment as agent of your corporation upon whom process, tax notices or demands may be served.

George My Pritchard

VOL. PG

CLERMONT COUNTY BATAVIA, GNIO

1888 DEC 30 HW 11; 22

RECEIVED FOR RECORD REHNETH A. KAHLE SR. RECORDER

6400